SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 5, 2014
9:08 a.m

9:08:48 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Committee neeting
to order at 9:08 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

David Scott, Staff, Senator Donald O son; Linda Thibodeau,
Director, Division of Libraries, Archives, and Miseuns,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent; Les Morse,
Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnment; Senator Gary Stevens; Tim Lankin, Staff |
Senator Gary Stevens;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Valerie diver, Division of Libraries, Archives, and
Museuns, Departrment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
Anchorage; Luke Fult, Assistant Superintendent of Business
and Operations, WMt-Su Borough School D strict, Mat-Su;
Mary Sage, Board of Education Menber, North Sl ope Borough
School District, Barrow, Peggy Cowan, Superintendent, North
Sl ope Borough School D strict, Barrow, Robert Thomason,
Superi nt endent, Petersburg School District, Petersburg; Jon
Painter, Director, Instructional Technology, Petersburg



School District, Petersburg; Theresa Keel, Superintendent,
Cor dova School District, Cor dova; Todd Poage,
Superintendent, Al aska Gateway School District, Tok; Ernie
Manzi e, Self, Fairbanks.

SUMVARY

SIJR 9 CONST. AM EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG
SJIR 9 was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with a new fiscal inpact
note fromthe O fice of the Governor

SB 82 BROADBAND DI SCOUNTS FOR SCHOOLS

SB 82 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 111 REPEAL SECONDARY SCHOCOL EXI' T EXAM

SB 111 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.

Co- Chair Meyer discussed the neeting s agenda.

#sb82
SENATE BILL NO. 82

“"An Act providing for public school funding for
t el econmuni cati ons or Internet services."

9:09: 55 AM

Senator O son stated that SB 82 was related to di scounts on
broadband for schools and that it would have a positive
i npact on schools throughout the State of Al aska.

DAVI D SCOTT, STAFF, SENATOR DONALD OLSON, related that the
intent of the bill was to have the state pick up the |oca
share of the broadband that was not covered under the E-
Rate Program He explained that the E-Rate Program was a
federal program that provided from the Universal Service

Fund (USF) a discount to schools, libraries, and "things of
that nature." He offered that every school district in the
state would benefit from the bill and referenced a spread

sheet from the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED) in nenbers' packets (copy on file). He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/05/14 9:08 A M



referenced page 5 of the spreadsheet and noted that $9.180
mllion was the total of the all the districts' applicant
shares. He observed that through the E-Rate Program and the
USF, the state was able to |everage roughly $4 for every $1
that it put in. He noted that the state was always
attenpting to nmake the education system better and that the
sponsor felt that it was appropriate to assist school
districts by leveraging even nore federal funding in order
to expand educational opportunities for districts that did
not have every opportunity; he stated that the |egislation
woul d have the nost benefit for rural school districts, but
that every school district would benefit from it. He
poi nted out that there were only 2 sections in the bill. He
referenced Section 1, subsection (a), which dealt with the
applicant share. He stated that Section 1, subsection
(b)(1) reflected the cap for bandw dth and that, subsection
(b)(2) represented the floor. He related that the floor was
a mnimm of 10 nmegabits per second of downl oad and that
the fiscal note showed that there were roughly 500 schools
in Alaska; 170 of those schools were below the 10 negabit
floor.

M. Scott continued to address SB 82 and offered that the
i ncreased broadband was necessary to assist in distance
delivery courses and new online assessnents. He observed
that DEED estimated that it would cost $7.3 nillion to
bring the 170 schools up to the 10 negabit per second
floor. He relayed that the sponsor felt that the benefits
of technology and the internet would expand educational
opportunities for all students across the state.

9:14: 37 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough wunderstood that there had been a
br oadband- bandwi dth study conducted regarding potenti al
needs in different areas in Alaska, but that she had not
received it yet to the best of her know edge. She inquired
how the proposed nunbers in bill conpared with the actua
usage and need of bandwdth wthin those comunities
currently. She furthered inquired who the bandw dth woul d
be purchased from She recalled discussions with the Al aska
Rai l road Corporation (ARRC) and thought that there was a
conpany that had basically bought all of the broadband
bandwidth in all of the states; as a result, everyone had
to go through a particular entity to buy bandw dth. She
admtted that she was unsure if the situation of bandw dth
bei ng bought up was true, but that she had heard that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/05/14 9:08 A M



federal governnent sold the bandwidth to a particular
company, which would cost states and nmnunicipalities
addi tional noney. M. Scott replied that the question was
one that drilled into the E-Rate Program and the USF, he
deferred the question to Ms. Thibodeau in the interest of
saving the commttee tine.

Co-Chair Meyer inquired if the state had contributed to E-
Rate Program in the past. M. Scott responded that his
understanding was that the federal funds were dispersed to
the school districts and that the school districts
t hensel ves picked up the applicant share. He furthered that
the intent of the bill was to have the state cover the
districts' applicant shares of internet services that were
not provided by the E-Rate Program which the state had
never done before to his know edge.

Co-Chair Meyer inquired if the bill was a request that had
come from the school districts. M. Scott responded that
sonme school districts had approached the sponsor regarding
t he | egislation.

Senator Dunleavy inquired if the funds that would be
dedi cated through the bill would be focused just on
internet service or if schools would be able to choose to
spend the noney in other areas. M. Scott replied that the
E-Rate Program |limted the wuses of the funds to
t el ecommuni cati ons services, internet access, and interna
connecti ons.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that wth federal match, there was a
concern wth the federal <contribution going away and
inquired if the bill's sponsors had that concern. M. Scott
did not believe that it was a concern and stated that the
E- Rat e Program was not subj ect to sequestrati on;
furthernore, the USF was paid into by everyone who had a
phone and received a bill and was also not subject to
sequestration. He noted that as Al askans, however, it was
good to be skeptical .

9:19:49 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy directed the cormmittee's attention to page
2 of the bill and inquired if the effective date was July
1, 2013. M. Scott replied that the bill had been drafted
the previous year and that if it passed, there would need

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/05/14 9:08 A M



to be conformng changes in a conmttee substitute to the
effective date, as well as other areas of the bill.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the commttee would make the
changes if and when bill noved.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough pointed to the sponsor statenment for
the bill (copy and file), which discussed the bill's
m ni mrum bandw dth floor. She inquired how the m ninum fl oor
of megabits per second was driving the costs of providing
t he broadband; she further inquired if the districts' costs
trickled down to the individual schools and if the
infrastructure cost was reflected in the bill. M. Scott
replied that way he understood the E-Rate Program i nternet
connections were considered infrastructure. He related that
the state assumed that it would cost $7.3 nmillion to get
those 170 schools up to 10 negabits per second. He directed
the commttee's attention to Section 1, subsection (b)(1)
of the bill and relayed that eligible schools would neet
the floor and be [imted by a cap, which was:

"10 percent of the anpunt paid under this section in
the imrediately preceding fiscal year for Internet
services.."

Co-Chair Meyer thought that the bill had potential to
advance the distance delivery program but that the
adm ni stration could address that issue further.

Senator A son commented that the bill would not only help
the distance delivery program but would also assist wth
gener al internet wthin the individual school s. He

explained that he did not have all of the details worked
out regarding how the noney would trickle down to different

school s, but that the bill would certainly be a help to all
of the school districts in Alaska regardless of whether
they were large or snmall, which was why he had sponsored

the | egislation.

LI NDA THI BODEAU, DI RECTOR, DI VI SION OF LIBRARIES, ARCHI VES,
AND MUSEUMS, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT,
related that MVs. Oiver was the division's E-Rate
speci alist and would probably be deferred to for questions
on that issue.

9:25:17 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/05/14 9:08 A M



Senator OAson inquired if it was true that a conpany had
bought a mmjor portion of the broadband width in Anmerica
and that Al aska would have go through that conpany to get
i nternet coverage for its schools.

VALERFE OLIVER, DI VISION OF LIBRARIES, ARCH VES, AND
MUSEUMS, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), responded that she was not
aware of that situation and that the reference nay have
been made in regard to sonething else. She related that
Alaska had pretty robust conpetition anong internet
provi ders. She expl ained that one provider did not fit all
needs in Alaska and that individual providers were better
suited for sonme areas, while sone were better suited for
ot hers. She concluded that there was no nonopoly in Al aska
regardi ng i nternet service.

Ms. Thi bodeau added that the E-rate program also required
that the | owest cost provider woul d be used.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough requested that the previous speaker
and the speaker online identify thenselves for the record .

Ms. Thi bodeau stated that the E-Rate reinbursenent program
required conpetition and that the |owest cost bandw dth be
selected for each location; additionally, she was also
unaware of any nonopoly or any particular vendor that had
bought and owned all the bandwi dth for Al aska.

Vice-Chair Fairclough recalled that her previous conments
had specifically stated that ARRC had supplied the
information regarding an internet nonopoly during a

presentation on positive train control in an earlier
neeting. She did not know how broadband wdth sold
t hroughout the country, but believed that individua

carriers purchased it from sonewhere. She wondered where
the individual <carriers would purchase their broadband
bandwidth from and if there was a difference between
carriers for Al aska.

Ms. Thi bodeau responded that she was unaware of the
situation ARRC had referenced and was unable to speak to
t he issue; however, there were a lot of different "pots" of
E-Rate noney and different pots of federal subsidies. She
expl ai ned that the federal E-Rate subsidies for schools and
libraries were different than the subsidies for health or

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



other entities. She concluded that the ARRC s business was
out of purview of the Division of Libraries, Archives, and
Miseuns.

Senator Bishop queried if DEED was confident in its
analysis that one-third of Alaska's schools were getting
under 10 negabits per second. M. Thibodeau deferred the
guestion to Ms. diver, but added that the information was
fromthe previous spring and could probably be updated. She
of fered that bandwi dth was a noving target and that schools
bought it depending on what they could afford and what it
was selling for at a particular tine.

9: 30: 02 AM

Ms. Aiver replied that the information was slightly out of
date and explained that currently, school districts were
conducting procurenent for the next year for the purposes
of E-Rate; sone districts were currently |looking for
contracts for bandwidth growh. She noted that as the
demand for online testing becanme higher, districts were
actively procuring for increased bandw dth. She believed
that the percent of schools that were under 10 negabits per
second would be dropping rather than rising; additionally,
procurenents were in the contract stage currently and there
would nore information regarding the contracts by the end
of March. She concluded that contracts that schools were
currently signing were for services that would connect on
July 1, 2014.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that Co-Chair Kelly had joined the
committee in progress.

Senator Hoffrman directed the conmttee's attention to a
docunent in nenbers' packets titled "E-Rate Share and Tot al
Cost" (copy on file) and inquired what the percentage under
the "Discount E-rate Request" columm neant. He noted that
the percentage varied between school districts from 48
percent up to 90 percent. M. diver replied that each
district was awarded a discount on its internet services
t hat depended on the poverty level in its local conmunity.
She expl ained that the E-Rate Program had a discount matrix
that the percent was drawn from She concluded that the
di scount level truly reflected the economc situations in
particul ar school districts and communities.

9:32: 57 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



Senat or Hof fman queried what the inplications of having the
floor at 10 negabits per second would be in the future when
the speeds night increase rapidly. He wondered if the
program would go away if everyone was at 50 negabits per
second in the future. Ms. Oiver understood that the fiscal
note would cover districts' share of the bandwi dth costs
regardl ess of the where they were; furthernore, the bill
would not only elevate the districts that were under 10
megabits, but would al so cover the non-di scounted share for
the districts |like Anchorage or the Lower Kuskokw m which
were approaching 100 negabits per second. She concluded
that the non-discounted share would grow as bandw dth
subscription increased and that she did not see the program
going away because districts would always have a portion
that they would be required to pay under the Federal
Communi cati ons Conmm ssion's statutes.

9:34:32 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired if M. diver had stated
that the local comunity would always be required to pay
its share. Ms. Aiver responded in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Fairclough surmsed that the |legislation was
asking the state to pick up the local share and inquired if
that was correct. Ms. Odiver responded different states did
things differently and that sone states did pay the non-
di scounted share but sone did not. She reported that a |ot
of states had a network where the broadband was brought
down to the school site, which was conpletely covered by
the state. She stated that the way she read the bill, it
appeared as though the districts were asking the state to
pay its non-di scounted portion.

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired if there was a State of
Al aska broadband width study. M. Thibodeau replied that
that she was unable to answer the question and believed
that Vice-Chair Fairclough was referencing the governor's
broadband taskforce. She added that the Division of
Li braries, Archives, and Museuns had not been involved with
t he taskforce.

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired how the fiscal note's
nunbers were arrived at and if the previous year's actual
nunbers were wused in the «calculations. M. Thibodeau
replied that she and Ms. diver had worked on the fiscal

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/05/14 9:08 A M



note with the vendors and the school districts the prior
spring to find costs; at the time, the school districts had
been involved in bidding for the current year. She
explained that the fiscal note was lagging a bit behind,
but that the process had been to get the best estimtes;
those estimates were divided with one-third of schools
needi ng upgrades to 10 negabits and two-thirds needing a 10
percent increase.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough pointed out that the bill built in a
10 percent cost increase that vendors could negotiate
because the state would pick it up. She offered that the
| egi sl ation pr oposed to deposi t or transfer t he
responsibility of paying internet services. She referenced
a docunent titled "Erate Brief" (copy on file) and noted
that it provided exanples of eligible services; she was not
opposed to the types of eligible services, but noted that

the bill proposed to supplant state funds for funds com ng
in from el sewhere. She acknow edged that she was unsure if
the noney that the bill proposed using would sinply consi st

of state funding that was shifted from one pool to another;
however, the legislation did have a built in increase that
vendors could use against the districts to perpetuate cost
increases and not really negotiate well. She appreciated
the bill being brought forward and was supportive of
providing better internet access; however, she wanted nore
i nformation about the financial inplications of the fisca
note, as well as how the cost figures were arrived at. She
also wanted to look at the governor's broadband study to
see if the bill's fornula would achieve the effect that the
state desired.

9:39: 31 AM

Senator O son noted that the internet was the wave of the
future and would be a very inportant factor for posterity.
He stated that the bill started the discussion of how the
state could provide not only for the school districts that
were struggling to provide internet, but also for the
districts in the netropolitan areas. He stated that another
option would be to have the state and school districts
split the costs in half instead of having the state pay for
the full $22 mllion in FY16. He concluded that there were
other options to make the bill affordable, but that his
goal was to nake costs affordable for school districts and
have the bill benefit students.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/05/14 9:08 A M



Co-Chair Meyer offered that the discussion on the bill was
good. He relayed that he wanted to hear nore from the
adm ni stration regarding a possible broadband study and how
the bill fit into the overall objective of getting nore
di stance | earning into education.

Vice-Chair Fairclough noted that there was a concept of
driving down adm ni strative costs by centralizing
i nsurance. She wondered if the state had buying power to
take the expense directly off of the school districts'
plates or if there was a benefit to having a local entity
negotiating with nultiple carriers to keep conpetition
goi ng. She wondered if there was a way to negotiate better
terms by noving wth access differently.

Senator Bishop requested a list of the one-third of the
districts that were wunder 10 negabits per second. M.
Thi bodeau responded that she believed that DEED had that
information and asked Ms. Oiver if that was correct.

Ms. Odiver replied that while DEED did not have the
information for July 1, 2014 and going forward, it did have
the current information. In other words, the departnent did
not know what the districts were currently negotiating
contracts for, but it did know about the current contracts.

Ms. diver stated for the record that she was a resource if
the commttee wanted nore information.

9:44: 19 AM

LUKE FULT, ASSISTANT SUPERI NTENDENT OF BUSINESS AND
OPERATI ONS, MAT-SU BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT, MAT-SU (via
tel econference), testified in support of SB 82. He related
that the district invested heavily in technology to ensure
that its schools were well connected; furthernore, the
district provided online courses, tutorials, and |essons
that served to enrich activities that took place within the
traditional classroom setting. He stated that digital
| earning was an inportant part of the Mat-Su Borough School
District's curriculum and pointed out that the district had
partnered wth service providers to increase bandw dth
connectivity across its area-wi de network. He pointed out
that increased infrastructure nmade the district's schools
nore connected than ever before; however, wth the
i ncreased connectivity canme higher costs. He reported that
in the next school year, the Mit-Su Borough School District

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/05/14 9:08 A M



pl anned to contribute $600,000 for the local portion of E-
Rat e-el i gi bl e servi ces.

MARY SAGE, BOARD OF EDUCATI ON MEMBER, NORTH SLOPE BOROUGH
SCHOOL DI STRI CT, BARROW (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 82. She related that the E-Rate Program
currently paid for 60 to 90 percent of all internet
services in public schools. She stated that the |egislation
would provide approximately $13.8 nmillion in FY14 for
school districts to offset the local costs of internet
services. She pointed out that one-third of public schools
had | ess than 10 negabits per second of internet services.
She added that 10 nmegabits was a pretty |low bar to set. She
stated that the bill would allow schools that were bel ow 10
negabits per second to conme up to that mninmm |evel and
receive state reinbursenent. She noted that the Al aska
Legislature and its staff had over 100 negabits per second
avai lable to themin the |egislative session.

PEGGY COWAN, SUPERI NTENDENT, NORTH SLOPE BOROUGH SCHOCOL
DI STRICT, BARROW (via teleconference), spoke in support of
SB 82. She reported that the bill had 2 aspects to it; one
was to bring schools to a m ninum bandwi dth of 10 negabits
per second. The other aspect of the bill was to cap the
state's exposure to a 10 percent increase over the prior
year for internet services increases. She pointed out that
other states provided sone utilities and services free of
charge to schools. She observed that the bill would have
the state share sone of the support wth the federa
government and thought that increasing broadband would
assi st schools wth distance delivered courses and
anticipated state online assessnents. She stated that wth
its current situation, the North Slope Borough School
District would not be able to do an online assessnent
program She stated that the E-Rate Program was not subject
to sequestration and noted that there had been discussion
about addi ng noney to the USF because of things |like online
assessnments that were being devel oped at the federal |evel.
She stated that the school district was currently in the
process of taking and evaluating bids for its phone and
internet services and noted that 4 different vendors had
been used in the past; in this particular bid process, the
district was looking at 2 bid packages. She thought that
the legislation was critical for rural school districts and
to the 170 schools that had internet below 10 negabits per
second; however, it would also be an asset to urban schoo
districts.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



9:53: 07 AM

ROBERT THOVASON, SUPERI NTENDENT, PETERSBURG SCHOCOL
DI STRICT, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 82. He noted that the Petersburg School
District was recognized as a state leader in digital
| earning and the application of technology, and observed
that it was very fortunate to have 25 negabits per second;
the cost of that bandwi dth was about $6,350 per nonth, 77
percent of which was currently reinbursed by the E-Rate
Program

JON PAINTER, DI RECTOR, | NSTRUCTI ONAL TECHNOLOGY, PETERSBURG
SCHOOL DI STRI CT, PETERSBURG (vi a tel econference), expressed
support for SB 82. He related that as technology went
forward, there became nore need for technol ogy support. He
di scussed innovations in technology such as 3D printing and
tel econferencing with other educators around the world. He
stated that nodern teaching nethods that utilized digita

tools were revolutionizing education and that technol ogy

was a great equalizer in society. He thought that
delivering faster and nore robust internet connection had
inplications on students’ learning and offered that

connectivity in Rural Al aska had a direct inpact on
| earning outcones; furthernore, the education system and
the nation's ability to prepare students were inportant in
t he hi ghly gl obal workforce.

THERESA KEEL, SUPERI NTENDENT, CORDOVA SCHOOL DI STRI CT,
CORDOVA (via teleconference), testified in support of SB
82. She related the Cordova School District was a nodel for
the use of technology in education and that every student
in it had daily access to an internet device such as an
| Pad or |aptop conputer; from grades 7-12, the district's
students had a 24-hour |aptop that they used all year |ong.
She reported that not all districts in Alaska were as
fortunate as Cordova and offered that technology was the
great equalizer for children in Rural Al aska. She thought
that the ability to provide online content in courses
enabl ed ki ds to achi eve t he Al aska Per f or mance
Schol arshi ps, allowed students to take duel-credit courses,
and offered diversity in course and content opportunities;
furthernmore, rural districts could not provide all of this
due to staffing and broadband |imtations. She pointed out
that the cost of broadband was becomng nore and nore
difficult to deal wth as funding remained flat. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



t hought that providing a mninmum of 10 negabits per second
of bandwi dth for every district would take a significant
financial burden off of school districts and would give
every district the ability to provide nore courses for
content. She stated that the prior year, Cordova School
district had spent over $14,000 for its local share of the
E-Rate Program for 6 negabits of broadband. She added that
the cost for the district in the current year would be over
$20,000 for 10 negabits per second of bandw dth. She
concluded that the bill would provide the biggest bang for
the state's buck regarding funding education outside of the
formula and stated that it would provide nore opportunities
for success in Rural Al aska.

9:59:41 AM

Senator O son wondered if the bill would be outdated in 5
or 10 years wth the advance of technology. M. Keel
replied that through the E-Rate bid process, the Cordova
School District had the opportunity to contract with a
provider for 2, 3, or 5 years; the district had chosen to
go with a 2-year contract because of the uncertainty of
where the cost of bandwi dth was going. She added that the
district believed that the cost of bandwi dth would fall as
conpetition increased. She reported that 5 years prior,
when the district had conducted its E-Rate contract, only 1
out of 2 the vendors that had went through the bid process
had been affordable; however, in the current year, there
were 3 different vendors with very conpetitive bids vying
to provide services for Cordova. She concl uded thought that
the cost would be going down, but that it was currently
very hard for school districts to provide the anount of
bandw dt h necessary to keep up with the age of technol ogy.

10: 02: 07 AM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

10: 02: 19 AM
AT EASE

10: 04: 58 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Meyer noted that there had been sone specific
guestions for the administration and how the bill fit into
t he broadband study that was bei ng conduct ed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



10: 06: 11 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough noted that the committee was trying
to get in contact wth different broadband carriers
t hroughout Alaska to see where broadband was being
purchased from She wondered if the task force broadband
study had been distributed to the |egislators and requested
that sonmeone conme by her office to discuss the study. She
wanted to see what information the admnistration had on
t he issue.

LES MORSE, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY DEVELOPMENT, replied that the broad band task force
had worked out of the Departnent of Conmerce, Conmunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), but noted that he would be
happy to <contact the departnent regarding Vice-Chair
Fairclough's interest. He understood that DCCED had
finalized its report earlier in the nonth, but was unsure
if it had been distributed yet.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough noted that the conm ssioner of DEED
had indicated the prior sunmer in a Senate Finance
Subconmittee that there was a broadband study. She thought
that DEED had been working on a needs assessnent of the
districts. M. Mrse noted that he better understood the
guestion and reported that there was another effort being
| ooked at by DEED, it was not being conducted by a
taskforce, but was a technology readiness survey. He
reported that DEED was still in the mdst of conducting the
technology readiness survey and that it was primrily
| ooking at if schools had the technology and tools to do an
el ectronic assessnent; the survey had a |imtation and did
not really speak to broadband. He explained that the survey
| ooked at if the equipnent a school had could facilitate
testing regardl ess of whether it would be using an internet
connection. He explained that there was a system called
| ocal caching, which used a local server for testing;, this
made it so you did not have to rely on broadband. He
explained that DEED was |ooking at |l|ocal caching as a
solution because broadband was not «currently available
everywhere. He stated that he would make the prelimnary
information available to Vice-Chair Fairclough and that he
woul d provide the finalized report to the full commttee.

Vice-Chair Fairclough believed that she had specifically
asked about a broadband study and not a survey. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



recalled that the Senate Finance Subconmittee had been
trying to determ ne how the state would deliver educationa
opportunities to Rural Al aska, as well as anywhere else
that did not have a highly qualified instructor in a
particul ar area.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough noted that the E-Rate discount that
subsi di zed the internet connectivity was distributed based
on the poverty rate and inquired if that system would be
equitable in Al aska for reaching need. She wondered if the
system targeted enough or too nuch noney for Anchorage
based on the poverty level guidelines and further inquired
if the criteria for the distribution of funds would neet
the needs of excess or lacking broadband in smaller
communities. M. Mrse responded that he could only speak
to the distribution and that under that definition it was
distributed in a fair process. He offered that it was a
policy discussion of whether the system net the need or
not .

10:11: 56 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough noted that she wanted to wait til
the commttee had a broadband study, so that it could know
what actual resources were needed in the different
comunities. She supported the idea of the bill and getting
resources to schools that were trying to provide internet.
She noted that there <college canpuses in Al aska. She
wondered whether the state would stand up individual
| ocations for purchasing power or if it would look at a
comunity as a whole and look at its need. She wondered if
it wuld be best to let the school districts negotiate if
the state was going to take on the investnent.

Senator Dunl eavy understood that there was a task force
that |ooked at Dbroadband, but that study was not
necessarily conprehensive. He applauded Senator O son for
the legislation, but wanted to nake sure that the committee
was not constantly adding pieces to a system that it did
not have enough information on. He thought that broadband
or technological capabilities and or issues statew de
needed to be ascertained and that a plan to possibly
address those needed to be devel oped.

Co-Chair Meyer did not recall the name of the governor's

program that had been discussed in the State of the State
speech and inquired how the bill was related to the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



governor's proposed program M. Mrse replied that the
governor had spoken to a Digital Teaching Initiative and
reported that the initiative would start with a pilot
program for a limted nunber of years on 3 |ocations where
there woul d be some opportunity to use distance technol ogy.
The idea was to work with 3 districts the first vyear,
exam ne success, and expand the nunber to 5 districts
during the pilot phase. He reported that the other piece of
the plan was supporting instructors because instruction via
di stance was different in terns of what a teacher needed to
do to be prepared. He concluded that there would be greater
details regarding the governor's plan as the capital budget
was rolled out in hearings.

10: 15: 44 AM

Co-Chair Meyer wanted to figure out if there was common
ground between the bill and the governor's proposed program
in the capital budget.

Senator O son inquired if the admnistration was in favor
of the bill as it was witten. Ms. Mrse responded that the
adm nistration thought it was an inportant dialogue and
that all of the discussion around broadband had a |ot of
points to it. He noted that there had been a task force
that | ooked specifically at broadband and thought that it
shoul d probably be added to the discussion. He thought that
the issue around creating opportunity and connectedness for
famlies was inportant. He thought that whether the bill
should nove forward was an inportant policy conversation
that the |egislature should have.

Senator A son inquired when the commttee could expect
advice regarding the admnistration's desired changes in
the bill, including the fiscal note. M. Mrse stated that
in terns of the fiscal note, the admnistration had
provi ded necessary information. He was unsure if DEED had
any other advice regarding the fiscal note. He added that

the admnistration's perspective of the bill was that it
represented an inportant policy discussion that the
| egi sl ature needed to have. He concl uded t hat
adm nistration would take a position on the bill as it

nmoved along if it were passed, but reiterated that it was
i nportant dial ogue and policy decision of the |egislature.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed that the legislation did represent an
i mportant policy discussion and thanked Senator O son for

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



offering the bill. He thought that the |egislature tended
to incorporate "these kinds of subjects” in its day-to-day
tal king points. He noted that the legislature believed in
broadband for Rural Al aska, as well as digital learning to
equal i ze education opportunities; however, when these
i ssues cane to the |egislature, they woke people up because
of their high expense. He thought that the conversation was
necessary because ultimately, it needed to be done. He was
unsure if the bill was exact vehicle, but thought that
| egislators had all stated that digital |earning needed to
be made available for Rural Alaska. He stated that he
wanted to nmeet with sone people to discuss the issue.

10: 18: 45 AM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that currently, the local school
districts were picking up the cost and that bill would
shift the cost to the state. He inquired if there were
synergies involved with having the funding conme through the
state. M. Morse deferred the question to staff at DEED,
but indicated that there may be sone advantages of having
the state negotiate; however, there were also unknowns in
terms of the fiscal inpact of having the state funding the
| ocal share of E-Rate Program He added that DEED nay be
able to provide sone nore specifics on the issue.

10:19: 55 AM
AT EASE

10: 22: 48 AM
RECONVENED

10: 22: 59 AM

Co- Chair Meyer noted that Vice-Chair Fairclough had brought
up sone good questions and that a |lot of them could not be
answered in the current neeting. He observed that there

were a |lot of unknowns with the bill and wanted to form a
subconm ttee on the legislation to get nore details
regarding the nuts and bolts of the bill and how it, or

something simlar, could work. He noted that Senator O son
woul d chair the subconmmttee and that Senator Dunleavy and
Vi ce-Chair Fairclough would be nenbers. He hoped that the
| egi slation could be brought back before the full conmmttee
W thin approxi mately 30 days.

10: 24: 11 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



SB 82 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

10: 24: 21 AM
AT EASE

10: 25: 48 AM
RECONVENED

#sjr9
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 9

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State
of Alaska relating to state aid for education.

10: 27: 09 AM

Co-Chair Kelly MOVED to REPORT SJR 9 out of conmittee with
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

10: 27: 23 AM

SJIR 9 was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with a new fiscal inpact note from the
O fice of the Governor.

#sb11l1l
SENATE BILL NO. 111

"An Act repealing the secondary student conpetency
exam nation and related requirenents; and providing
for an effective date."

10: 27: 49 AM

SENATOR GARY STEVENS, introduced SB 111 and indicated that
the bill would repeal the high school exit exam He
di scussed the vote on the exit exam on the House Floor in
2001 and noted that it had passed 40-0. He recalled that at
the tinme, the issue had seened very inportant because
students were graduating wthout basic skills for |obs,
careers, and college. The exit exans had been in effect
since 2004 and had been in operation for 10 years. He
offered that very little was gained through the exit exam
and that new accountability neasures were in place that

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



made it obsolete. He discussed the new standards that had
been inplemented and opined that it no |onger nmade sense to
have the exit exam because it was not aligned to the new
state common score standards. He pointed out that the exit
exam was high stakes and that it caused enornous anxiety
anong students, teachers, and parents. He recalled that
when the legislature had passed the exit exam it had nade
sense to him to establish a floor and that all children
shoul d have certain abilities upon graduation; however, it
had becone a ceiling and not a floor. He recalled that
children thought that if they passed the exit exam their
sophonore year, they were done wth high school. He
reported that the exit exam was expensive to the state and
had a cost of $3 nmillion annually; furthernore, it took 6
days out of the school year.

Senator Stevens continued to address the bill and related
that there was enornous support for repealing the exit exam
from students, parents, school boards, superintendents, the
State Board of Education, the comm ssioner of DEED, and the
gover nor.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired if Senator Stevens had a nunber for
how many people had a certificate of participation over
this period of tine.

TIM LAWKI N, STAFF, SENATOR GARY STEVENS, responded that the
nunmbers could probably be extrapolated from the test
results in the packet, but deferred to DEED for a specific
nunber .

Co-Chair Kelly thought that the bill did not envision what
the state would do with the people that did not pass the
exit exam and had only received a certificate of
participation; he did not want to |eave those people high
and dry. He recalled that the summer after he had voted on
the exit exam he had nore tine to think about the issue
and had decided that he did not like the whole idea. He
stated that one of things he liked |east about the exit
exam were the certificates of participation; he did not
want people from Al aska who received a certificate of
participation to be at a disadvantage agai nst students from
other states who nmay have received the sane education. He
wanted to nmake sure that people who had certificates of
participation while the exit exans were in effect received
credit for a high school education. He thought that a high
school diploma should be the test and that the state had

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



| ost sight of that because it was eager to address an
ongoi ng education problem He wanted to renenber the people
who received certificates of participation during the
di scussi ons on educati on.

10: 33: 34 AM

Senator Stevens stated that the exit exam was a nationa
novenent and that the state had been caught up in the
excitenment of it; however, in 10 years, it had not solved
the problem He pointed out that it was inportant that
students that were in school this year knew that they had
to take the exit exam The issue was far from being
resol ved and students would still be taking the examin the
current year; if students failed the exam they would have
the opportunity to take it over and over again. He pointed

to the bill and noted that exam would still be in effect
till June 30, 2017 if the legislation passed. He noted that
should the bill pass, students who failed the test this

year would have 6 opportunities to retake the text before
it was abol i shed.

Senat or Dunleavy inquired if there had ever been a study or
a |l ook regarding how nmany enployers had asked to see if a
student had passed all 3 parts of the high schoo

gualifying exam Senator Stevens replied that he was
unsure, but that it represented a good question that would
be nice to know He deferred further answer to the
adm ni stration.

Senator O son inquired if Senator Stevens was saying that
the high school qualifying exam was totally ineffective and
that there had not been increases in SAT scores or other
coll ege exans; he found it hard to believe that it did not
stinul ate sone students. Senator Stevens replied that there
were some changes, but that his youngest daughter had taken
the test her sophonore year in high school and had thought
it was sort of silly. He opined that sone students saw the
exit examas pretty much a waste of tine.

M. Lankin stated that there was information in nenbers’
packets from DEED that showed test results of the ful

lifespan of the exit exam from spring of 2004 to the |ast
test results in the spring 2013(copy on file); during that
time period, reading proficiency had raised from 70 percent
to 84 percent. During the sanme period, efficiency in
witing had dropped from 86 percent to 72 percent; the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



bi ggest change during the exit exam was perhaps in
mat hemati cs where proficiency increased from 67 percent to
77 percent.

Senator Stevens noted that there were sone changes that
took place over the 10 years that the exit exam had been in
pl ace.

Senator (O son wondered if the sponsors viewed the 10
percent increase in nmath, as well as the other increases as
a positive thing. Senator Stevens replied that it was
absolutely a positive for the districts, but that exam did
not fit into the new standards that had been approved by
t he governor or the conm ssioner of DEED that were based on
the new common core standards. He added that the exit exam
did not align with what the current goal was for children
in Al aska.

10: 37: 54 AM

Co- Chair Meyer supported the bill and thought that it was
sonmet hing that should have been done several years prior.
He expressed appreciation for the positive fiscal note and
t hought that there should be nore bills like it. He thought
that the bill would save the school districts a substanti al
anount of noney by elimnating the admnistration and
preparation for the test. Senator Stevens replied that the
money that would be saved, as well as putting 6 days back
in the classroomwas a real positive thing.

Senator Stevens pointed out that repealing the exit exam
was part of the governor's omibus bill and assumed that it
woul d be the vehicle for the effort; however, should that
| egislation falter along the way, SB 111 woul d be there.

Co-Chair Meyer agreed that repealing the exit exam would

probably be part of the ommibus bill, but that the issue
was i nportant enough that the commttee would want it to go
as a stand-alone bill if necessary.

TODD POAGE, SUPERI NTENDENT, ALASKA GATEWAY SCHOOL DI STRI CT,
TOK (via teleconference), spoke in support of SB 111. He
poi nted out that he had supported the exit exam because it
brought attention to a level of academ c proficiency that
each student needed to obtain to receive a high school
di pl oma; students took the assessnent seriously because of
t he consequences associated with not passing. He reported

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



that the exit exam was no longer relevant since the new
Al aska academ c standards had been reforned in math and
| anguage arts. He related that if another high stakes
assessnment tool was developed, the Al aska Gateway School
District supported one that incorporated essential skills
required for college and intertw ned work-force readiness
skills. The district also supported the devel opnent and
i npl ementation of an online assessnent tool to increase
testing efficiency, so student answers were subnmtted and
results were received in a tinelier manner. He concluded
that a new high-stakes test did not have to be a
requi renent for graduation, but could be an inserted enbl em
on a diploma that <contained a designated score that
i ndi cated readiness for college classes. He thought that a
new exam could designate levels of eligibility for Al aska
Per f or mance Schol ar shi ps.

10: 42: 53 AM

Senator Dunleavy inquired what kind of feedback the
departnment had received over the years regarding the exit
exans and colleges. He inquired if colleges and enployers
| ooked at the exit exam M. Mrse responded that an
enpl oyer | ooked for if a student had a diplom or not and
that passing the exit exam was required for a diplom. He
reported that the only true feedback was from people at the
university that the exam did not provide the Ilevel of
informati on needed to be able to tell if a student had the
required math skills because of the mninmm conpetency
approach. He added that many enployers asked for and
required a high school diplona.

10: 44: 24 AM

Senator Dunleavy inquired if there was any feedback from
enployers that they were focusing on the high school
gual i fying exam as a crucial part of that overall portfolio
of graduation. M. Mrse replied in the negative.

ERNIE  MANZI E, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in favor of SB 111. He pointed out that it had
been asserted that repealing the exam took away an
accountability aspect, but that he did not agree with that.
He strongly supported the other assessnments such as the SAT
and ACT. He strongly supported WrkKeys and opined that it
was a wonderful assessnment that targeted students that
possi bly were not going on to a 4-year college; it targeted

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



students that were |looking for technical colleges or
careers in the trades. He recalled serving on the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education
and pointed out that students on Individualized Education
Progranms (I EP) had difficulties with having the exit exam
placed on them He pointed out that he was a parent of
child that was on an IEP all through elenmentary, m ddle,
and nost of high school and that his son had passed his
witing exam on this l|ast chance. The qualifying exam had
not told his famly anything it did not already know, which
was that his son was a poor witer; how they addressed his
son's poor witing was through his IEP and working wth
hi gh school staff. He did not think that a qualified exam
in itself should serve as a barrier to a diploma. He
expressed appreciation for the coments of Co-Chair Kelly
regarding what to do with students who net all of the other
requirenents but had not passed the exit exam and
therefore, did not receive a diplona

In response to an earlier question by Senator Dunleavy, M.
Manzi e thought that enployers |ooked at whether soneone had
a high school diploma or not. He added that he had never
heard of enployers asking questions about whether soneone
had passed the exit exam

SB 111 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

10: 49: 12 AM

Co- Chair Meyer discussed the follow ng neeting' s agenda.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

10: 49: 26 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:49 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 23 02/ 05/ 14 9:08 A M



